
1 

 

ST. LANDRY PARISH COUNCIL 

ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 5th, 2025 

OLD CITY MARKET, 131 W. BELLEVUE ST. 

OPELOUSAS, LOUISIANA 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor called this meeting of the 

Administrative/Finance Committee of the St. Landry Parish Council to order.  

 

2. Roll Call:  Faltery Jolivette, Harold Taylor, Dexter Brown, Timmy Lejeune and 

     Ernest Blanchard.   ABSENT:  Ken Marks and Ex-Officio Jody White. 

 

3. Person to address the Committee. 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “I have only one request and it is 

done in writing.  It is in your packet.  It is a request on the Energy District from Quinn Hebert.  

He resides at 120 Railroad Street.  He has several written questions that he wanted to present to 

us tonight.  When you all have time you all can read them.” 

 

4. Parish President & Finance Reports: 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “You all should have the finance report in hand.  The 

only thing on the Parish President’s report is basically what I have discussed earlier about 

DOTD Secretary.  I met with the Senate Chairman of the Finance yesterday as well on moving 

forward about Capital Outlay Project.  Basically the same thing applies for Capital Outlay.  

They are not going to be changing anything on that.  One thing was brought up and it was not 

a good topic about the Inventory Tax.  Now the businesses do not get the deduction in state tax 

or income tax if they file their inventory tax.  Basically this year’s tax roll is less because of 

that situation.  I think we are going to start seeing a lot more of businesses not showing all of 

their inventory.  They will pay less taxes and we will get less tax.  We talked about that at our 

meeting yesterday and they are requiring us 100% of our mandated expenses but yet the state 

wants to cut out the inventory tax and that is about 35% of our Ad Valorem Taxes.  We are 

just making sure that they understand what they are doing on their end and how it is affecting 

the local parishes.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor questioned, “So do they want to cut it or is 

it cut?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “They just cut the deduction back.  They did not cut it 

because remember that amendment fail.  The Constitutional Amendment failed last year but 

they are bringing it back up.  If it passes it is left up to the Local Jurisdiction to decide on 

whether or not we are going to disallow the Inventory Tax.  I will be honest with you all but 

that is 35% of our Ad Valorem taxes in this parish.  Even if it passes in our parish we can’t 

afford to be without it. So the talk is this:  If the state wants to take some of these mandates off 

of us then we can look at different things but they are requiring us to pay everything that we 

have to pay.  Like I explained to the Senator yesterday, a lot of these mandated expenses have 

been in place since 1970 and they have not been amended at all.  Things change so we are just 

bringing that out to let everybody know that we are still working on these unfunded mandates 

and hoping that we can make some changes next session.  I don’t feel to optimistic about it, I 

will be honest with you all but we will be making the effort for that to happen.  We are not 

asking for nobody to take the blame or take the money but they have to work with us and try 

to help us with these unfunded mandates.  It is over 50 years and some of these bills have been 

passed and no changes have been done.  I just wanted to give you all an update on our meeting 

from yesterday.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Could you update us on the 

$4,000,000.00 Bond that was approved.  Did we get the money from the bank?  I know that 

you had mentioned that you receive $2,900,000.00.   Can you give us an overview on where 

you are with that?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “We got the $2,900,000.00.” 



2 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “You got $2,900,000.00.” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “Yes Sir.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “You could not get the 

$4,000,000.00.” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “We don’t need the $4,000,000.00.  We needed 

$2,900,000.00.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Why did we ask for $4,000,000.00 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “They always wanted us to ask for more in case we 

needed it.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Who is they?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “The Bonding Attorneys.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Oh, the Bonding Attorneys.  So 

the bank loaned you $2,900,000.00 and they extended the loan that we were supposed to pay 

this year is that correct?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “No that is including that loan.  That is the 

$1,600,000.00 from last year and $1,300,000.00 from this year.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “So the $2,900,000.00 was a 

combination of the $1,600,000.00 and the $1,300,000.00.”  

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “That is correct.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “How are we doing on Finances?  I 

see that we are under water $3,000,000.00 on your Finance Report.  Do you have more 

revenue coming in?  Do you expect to cover that or what?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “We do have more money coming in than what we 

expected.  Again until the end of the year I can’t really answer those questions.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Have you done anything to tighten 

up the budget?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “We have cut all that we could cut.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “What did we cut?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “We cut personnel and services.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “How many?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “I forgot how many.  I gave you all a list a while 

back.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Roughly, Roughly.” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “I can’t tell you.  I don’t know.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Three or Two.” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “I can’t tell you.  It is about $374,000.00 worth of cuts 

with personnel and product and services that we can do without.” 

 



3 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Have you heard any more from 

Nextell on the $5,100,000.00?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “I met with them last week.  They on pace to do next 

summer to start the process and complete in December of 2028.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Now the $5,100,000.00 tell us 

how that breaks out.  Is it the $4,250,000.00 state tax which is the pilot dollars that we are 

going to get correct?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “So the $5,000,000.00 is basically what they would 

have paid to the state is what they are going to pay us.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Yes that is it, the Pilot money 

right.” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “Pilot Payment, correct.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “I understand they get to keep half 

of it.” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “That is right.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “So we don’t get the full 

$5,000,000.00.” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “The original thing is almost $11,000,000.00 in State 

Tax.  So we get one half of that.  The project is like a $185,000,000.00 project with 

approximately 78% of that taxes.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “But you won’t get it all in one 

year it will be spread out through 2028 correct?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “The buff of the money will come in the first 2 or 3 

quarters after the bulk of their product.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “If they start in June which is the 

second quarter by the end of the year how much do you think we are going to get?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “I can’t tell you that.  I don’t know exactly what it is 

going to be.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Well we need $5,000,000.00 is 

what you are saying but I am just asking will we have the $5,000,000.00?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “I would have to say no.  $5,000,000.00 won’t be in 

by next year.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Thank you.  Are there any other 

questions?” 

 

Councilman Timmy Lejeune questioned, “The Inventory Tax Cut or lack of credit we are not 

going to get if we follow through with the state.  They are not going to subsidize that in any 

way?  Is it going by the waste side?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “The way that the constitution amendment was on the 

ballot last year they were going to subsidize the local parishes.  If it would have passed we 

could have taken like a three year buy out.  Basically it would give us 3 years of our tax but 

that failed.  So now it goes to the people and if the people vote in our parish to do away with 

the inventory tax it would be an option for this body to do.  We would say ‘yes’ or ‘no’.  There 

is no buy out, there is no incentive from the state at that point.” 

 



4 

 

Councilman Timmy Lejeune questioned, “So we can’t do it by ordinance that we collect the 

tax regardless or do we have to put it on the ballot?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “No it will be on the ballot for next may now.  If the 

voters vote yes it will be an option for the council to decide whether or not we are going to let 

the tax stay in place or not.  If we say take the tax off the books then we are basically losing 

about 35% of our Ad Valorem Taxes.” 

 

Councilman Wayne Ardoin stated, “Mr. Bellard, are all of the vendors paid now?  I know that 

you have stated that some of the vendor were not paid.” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “The have some that are not paid up like some of 

these jails that took some of our inmates and they are not paid up because they don’t want to 

take the money that we want to give them.  They want us to pay them $26.39 per day and the 

law says $3.50.” 

 

Councilman Wayne Ardoin stated, “Other vendors, I am talking about people who have done 

work for the parish.  Are they all paid up?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “They are paid up for their 30-45 day process, yes.” 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Timmy Lejeune, seconded by Councilman Faltery 

Jolivette to accept the Parish President & Finance Report: 

On roll call vote:  YEAS: Faltery Jolivette, Dexter Brown, Timmy Lejeune and  

Ernest Blanchard. NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Ken Marks. ABSTAINED: None.  

Motion carried. 

 

5. Forward to Full Council RESOLUTION NO. 039-2025. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Faltery Jolivette, seconded by Councilman 

Ernest Blanchard to forward to Regular Meeting held on Wednesday, November 

19, 2025 to Adopt Resolution No. 039-2025. 
On roll call vote:  YEAS:  Faltery Jolivette, Dexter Brown, Timmy Lejeune and  

Ernest Blanchard.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Ken Marks. ABSTAINED: None.  

Motion forwarded. 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE AUTHORITY 

TO THE PRESIDENT TO SIGN AND 

SUBMIT ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, 

APPOINT AN ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTANT AND ENGINEER 

AND TO COMMIT COSTS FOR THE FY 2026 LOUISIANA 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor questioned, “Will the grant cover the 

engineering and the administrative cost 100%?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “That is correct.  This is strictly for the Plaisance 

Water System.  It is just coming through the Parish Government to help them get their 

grant.  None of the cost is with us, it is all with the grant and the Plaisance Water System.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “If they don’t get the grant 

who will cover that cost?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “They can’t do anything until the grant is actually 

approved.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “I understand.  Who pays for 

that upfront?  The water system or the parish government?” 

 

Parish President Jessie Bellard stated, “No Plaisance Water System.” 

 

Administrative Finance Chairman Harold Taylor stated, “Okay, thank you.” 



5 

 

Resolution No. 039-2025. 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE AUTHORITY 

TO THE PRESIDENT TO SIGN AND 

SUBMIT ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, 

APPOINT AN ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTANT AND ENGINEER 

AND TO COMMIT COSTS FOR THE FY 2026 LOUISIANA 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 

 WHEREAS, the St. Landry Parish Government deems it necessary and proper to 

submit an application for funding under the Fiscal Year 2026 Louisiana Community 

Development Block Grant for a public facilities project for the Plaisance Water System; and 

 

 WHEREAS, professional engineering services are necessary in connection with the 

preparation of the application and the engineering design and inspection, should the project 

be funded; and 

 

 WHEREAS, professional grants consulting and administrative consulting services 

are necessary to assist in the preparation of the application and the partial administration of 

the grant, should the project be funded; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Parish Council of St. Landry 

Parish Government that President Jessie Bellard is hereby authorized to sign and submit an 

application for funding and all the necessary documents in connection with the Fiscal Year 

2026 Louisiana Community Development Block Grant Program. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that President Jessie Bellard is hereby authorized 

to negotiate and sign a contract with Morgan Goudeau & Associates, Inc. to assist with the 

application preparation and if the application is funded, provide the professional engineering 

services required and the Parish Government hereby commits to pay all the engineering fees 

associated with the implementation of the LCDBG program should the project be funded.  

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that President Jessie Bellard is hereby authorized 

to negotiate and sign a contract with Aucoin & Associates, Inc. to prepare the application 

for funding and if the application is funded, provide the professional grant administrative 

services required and the Parish Government hereby commits to pay all the costs associated 

with the preparation of the application and all of the grant administrative consulting fees 

associated with the implementation of the LCDBG program should the project be funded.  

 

 

6. Forward to Full Council RESOLUTION NO. 040-2025. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Dexter Brown, seconded by Councilman 

Timmy Lejeune to forward to Regular Meeting held on Wednesday, November 19, 

2025 to Adopt Resolution No. 040-2025. 
On roll call vote:  YEAS:  Faltery Jolivette, Dexter Brown, Timmy Lejeune and 

Ernest Blanchard.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Ken Marks. ABSTAINED: None.  

Motion forwarded. 

 

 

 

 

 



6 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 040-2025 

 

WHEREAS, Title 2 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 provides that cities, towns, 

parishes, and other political subdivisions of this State may separately or jointly acquire, 

establish, construct, expand, own, lease, control, equip, improve, maintain, operate, 

regulate, and police airports and landing fields for the use of aircraft; and, 

WHEREAS, the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development, 

Division of Aviation (formerly the LA DOTD-OAPT) is charged by Title 2 with the 

responsibility for the development of aviation facilities within the State to foster air 

commerce and to safeguard the interests of those engaged in all phases of the aviation 

industry and of the general public; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the St. Landry Parish Government hereinafter referred to as "Sponsor", has 

completed an FAA and DOTD approved Master Plan, Action Plan, and/or Airport Layout 

Plan which outlines the specific future development of the St. Landry Parish Airport; and, 

the sponsor is desirous of implementing a portion of the approved Plan recommendations 

which provide for the critically needed improvements as stated below to substantially 

improve the safety and usability of the Airport, but does not have sufficient funds of its 

own required for completing the needed improvements; and, 

WHEREAS, the LA DOTD, Division of Aviation, is authorized by Title 2 to expend funds 

for the construction or enlargement of airports for the safety and advancement of 

aeronautics; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

SECTION I 

That the St. Landry Parish Government, hereinafter referred to as "Sponsor" does hereby 

formally request that the LA DOTD, Division of Aviation provide funds required to 

complete the airport improvements at the St. Landry Parish Airport specifically as 

described in the Six (6) year Capital Improvement Program Application for State Financial 

Assistance which is dated August 1, 2025 and which commences in the year 2026. 

SECTION II 

 

That the said LA DOTD, Division of Aviation be and is hereby assured that all necessary 

servitudes, rights-of-way, rights of ingress and egress and means thereof will be furnished 

by the Sponsor and the titles thereto will be valid and indefeasible, and that the Sponsor 

will assume ownership, financial reporting, and complete responsibility for the 

maintenance and upkeep of the airport after completion of said improvement. 

 

SECTION III 

 

That the Sponsor will save and hold the said LA DOTD, Division of Aviation, its officers, 

agents, and employees harmless from any liability or claim for damages arising out of the 

project, including death or injuries to third parties including, but not limited to, liability or 

claim for damages out of the negligence of said LA DOTD, Division of Aviation, its 



7 

 

officers, agents, or employees, and expressly agrees to defend any suit of any nature 

brought against the DOTD Division of Aviation as a result of this project. 

 

SECTION IV 

 

That the President of the Sponsor be and is hereby authorized and directed to evidence this 

agreement by affixing his signature at the place provided therefore on this resolution and 

on subsequent related documents/agreements as required by the rules and regulations of the 

Federal Aviation Administration and the State of Louisiana and the Clerk is hereby 

authorized to attest said execution. 

SECTION V 

 

That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 

 

7. Discuss any other business properly brought before this committee. 

None. 

 

8. Adjourn. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Faltery Jolivette, seconded by Councilman Ernest 

Blanchard to adjourn the Administrative/Finance Committee Meeting. 

On roll call vote:  YEAS:  Faltery Jolivette, Dexter Brown, Timmy Lejeune and 

Ernest Blanchard.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Ken Marks. ABSTAINED: None.  

Motion carried. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THE FOREGOING TO BE EXACT AND TRUE  

KAREN BARLOW, ASSISTANT COUNCIL CLERK 


